
The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Rachelle Denham, City Clerk 

RE: Clerk’s Report     Council Meeting Date: June 14, 2022 

Billing: 
For June’s billing cycle April Bi-Monthly Billing Cycle the City billed a total of $213,580.15 in 
water and sewer bills. 

• Total of 36 accounts carrying over an outstanding balance which equals $9,316.85.
• Currently only 2 accounts still participating in the COVID-19 Contract with a grand total

of $856.20
• Total of 64 Badger meters in the ground and only 6 citizens have downloaded the

EyeOnWater App
• Summer sewer discount is in effect until October’s billing cycle. For the ones who are not

aware, Summer Sewer Discount is where we take the previous winter consumption from
December and February’s billing and apply the average consumption to the sewer for
accounts that have been established for a 12-month period.

Updates: 
• Courtroom update: We are finalizing plans. Originally the funding was going to come

from ARPA funds and recently Katie Geihl came across an AOC Grant opportunity for
courtroom updates. This upgrade will include wireless mics, conferencing cameras will
be installed to allow streaming options for meetings to include council and planning. The
ARPA funds will allow for us to lower the judge stand and have new carpet installed,
tablets for attorney’s and council members that can be placed on desks allowing better
visual appearance for Zoom meetings. This is a work in process and is very exciting!

• Tablets for Council: This has not been forgotten. I’m going to be meeting with another
city that is using tablets to get feedback on how it’s working for them before I move
forward.

• New City Website: We hope to go Live on Monday, 6/13!!

Shawn O’Neill, Mayor 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk 
Michelle Whitten, Treasurer 

John Brockmueller, Chief of Police 
Bryan Morris, PW – CD Director 

407 Birch Ave SW, P. O. Box 810 
Napavine, WA 98565 

Phone: (360) 262-3547 
Fax: (360) 262-9199 

www.cityofnapavine.com 





NAPAVINE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
May 24, 2022, 6:00 P.M. 

Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA  

CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Shawn O’Neill called regular city council meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

INVOCATION: 

Invocation was led by Bryan Morris 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Mayor Shawn O’Neill led the flag salute. 

ROLL CALL:  
Council members present: Shawn O’Neill Mayor, Brian Watson Councilor #1, Larry Stafford Councilor #2, Don 
Webster Councilor #3, Heather Stewart Councilor #4, and Duane Crouse Councilor #5.  

City staff members present: Clerk Assistant – Morgan Easley, Treasurer – Michelle Whitten, PW/Comm Dev – Bryan 
Morris, Executive Assistant to the Chief of Police – Judy Godbey. Rachelle Denham, City Clerk (Absent-approved 
vacation) 

CONSENT/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Larry Stafford Motion: Approval of Agenda- As Presented 
SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.

Mayor Shawn O’Neill temporarily closed the regular meeting at 6:02 to the Public Hearing for Napavine’s 6-year 
Transportation Improvement Program from 2022 to 2027. 

Regular Council Meeting opened back up at 6:03. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MOVED: Larry Stafford Motion: Approval of Minutes - Regular Council 
Meeting from May 10, 2022 SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried: 5 aye and 0 nay.

STAFF & COUNCIL REPORTS:  

Clerk Assistant – Morgan Easley 
• Operations are normal.

Executive Assistant to the Chief of Police – Judy Godbey 
• Operations are normal. Chief Brockmueller is currently attending the WASPC Conference.

Public Works/Community Development Director – Bryan Morris 
• Operations are normal. Notified council of the Building Inspector’s resignation and last day was May 23rd.

Public Works employee, Rylee, will be filling the open position and the City will be hiring someone to fill
the open position in Public Works.

Treasurer- Michelle Whitten 
• Operations are normal.



Napavine City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

Mayor Pro Tem, Councilor – Duane Crouse 
• Attended the Flood Authority meeting last week. Gave thanks to Bryan and Michelle for working on the

ordinance pertaining to the fuel station moratorium.

Mayor Shawn O’Neill 
• Had the pleasure grilling hamburgers at the baseball concession stands last week, bringing back great

memories!

NEW BUSINESS 

VOUCHERS- M. WHITTEN:  
May 24, 2022, Second Council Meeting, (Funds) Total Voucher Numbers: 37549 – 37570; $29,373.71, Payroll 
Voucher numbers: -0-; $0.00 Electronic Payments dates EFT*202205-08 $7,616.42; ACH Deposit Dates: Thursday, 
May 12, 2022; $26,128.14 Electronic Payroll Payments: EFT*20220505-06 $10,985.48; Vouchers Grand Total: 
$74,103.75. **VOIDED CHECK: 37564 

MOVED: Don Webster Motion: Approval of the Vouchers dated May 
24, 2022, 2nd Council Meeting  SECONDED: Larry Stafford 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay.

RESOLUTION 22-05-130 SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2022 to 2027 – B. MORRIS: 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-05-130 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NAPAVINE, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE 2022-2027 SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF NAPAVINE. 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: To approve Resolution 22-05-130 
SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay.

RESOLUTION 22-05-131 SURPLUS MASTER METERS – B. MORRIS: 

RESOLUTION NO.  22-05-131 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  
OF NAPAVINE, WASHINGTON, DECLARING CERTAIN 
PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE  
CITY AND DIRECTING DISPOSAL OF SUCH PROPERTY 

MOVED: Larry Stafford Motion: To approve Resolution 22-05-131 
SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay.



Napavine City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

SKATEPARK PAINT DESIGN – B. MORRIS:  

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: To accept Design Option C SECONDED: Don Webster 
Discussion: Councilor Stewart asked why they can’t select all three and each kid can do one 

of their own designs. 
Director Morris advised that he is running this project as paint contractors. Each student is 

submitting a bid. Requested that council take a vote on their favorite out of the option A, 
B and C and then to make a motion to accept the majorities decision. He stated that he 
does have it in his budget to make a plaque giving recognition to Napavine School, the 
instructor and to the student who created the design. 

Councilor Watson stated he likes Option C. The remaining 4 councilors followed with Option 
C. 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IMPROVEMENT VARIANCE – B. MORRIS:  

MOVED: Heather Stewart Motion: To approve the Public Right-of-Way 
Improvement Variance 
 

SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: Director Morris informed council that this variance is to be accepted with the 
conditions of approval by the planning commissions. It will be a 3-plex at the end of 
Newaukum and the developer will be doing 22-foot wide, half road improvements to the 
North. The city will get streetlights, a themed road, and extended water and sewer. 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

ORDINANCE 631 FUEL STATION MORATORIUM – B. MORRIS:  

ORDINANCE NO. 6 31 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAPAVINE, WASHINGTON, 
IMPOSING AN IMMEDIATE MORATORIUM ON THE FILING, 
ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING AND/OR APPROVAL OF 
APPLICATIONS FOR THE SITING, ESTABLISHMENT, AND 
OPERATION OF VEHICLE FUELING STATIONS WITHIN CITY 
LIMITS; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; SETTING A PUBLIC 
HEARING; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

MOVED: Larry Stafford Motion: To approve Ordinance 631 Fuel 
Station Moratorium  SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: Mayor O’Neill asked Director Morris if the city needs to do anything else 
regarding the moratorium.  

Director Morris advised the Mayor and Council that he has a time frame he must work with. 
He will have to get with the Clerk regarding the Public Hearing, followed up with 
another ordinance regarding the action the City may take. His recommendation is 
removing fuel stations from permitted use and adding them to a conditional use permit 
allowing the city to have more say and set conditions 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay. 

 



Napavine City Council Meeting 
May 24, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS: 

Jerry Graham, 295 Kirkland Rd – Had questions regarding Exit 72 and the Fuel Station Moratorium just passed. He 
expressed concern and wanted to know how this will affect TA from coming in. Mr. Graham advised council that he 
has property that will be donated in contribution to the development of a round-about.  

Councilor Webster responded that as to the current projects who are working with the city prior to the 
ordinance and have documents submitted will be grandfathered in.  

Councilor Crouse gave Mr. Graham the reassurance that the TA project will not be affected by the 
moratorium or any project for that matter who has made an investment prior to the passing of the 
ordinance. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

MOVED: Larry Stafford Motion: To Adjourn – Close of Meeting 
SECONDED: Don Webster 

Discussion: Meeting Adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 5-0 Motion Carried; 5 aye and 0 nay.

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online from 
freeconferencecall.com at the link https://fccdl.in/oBXTOkbOHW  

Respectfully submitted, 

Rachelle Denham, City Clerk Shawn O’Neill, Mayor Councilor 

https://fccdl.in/oBXTOkbOHW


NAPAVINE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  
PUBLIC HEARING – 6-year Traffic Improvement Program 

May 24, 2022, 6:00 P.M. 
Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Shawn O’Neill called public hearing on the 6-year Traffic Improvement Program to order 6:02 pm. 

INTRODUCTION: 
Mayor Shawn O’Neill introduced himself as presiding over the public hearing. 

PURPOSE OF HEARING: 

To invite testimony from the community members and the public regarding the 6-year Traffic Improvement Program 
before the Council. The Council will hear testimony from persons present who wish to speak for or against the the 
6-year Traffic Improvement Program. Any questions, please direct them to the Mayor and he will direct staff and
Council members who may have the answers to address the question.

PROCEDURE: 
Those wishing to testify are asked to speak clearly and tell the Council 

• Your Name
• Your Address

Opened Public Hearing: 

Mayor Shawn O’Neill opened the public hearing and welcomed anyone wishing to speak to approach the podium. 

No one spoke during the public hearing. 

Closing of Public Hearing:  

Mayor Shawn O’Neill announced, all testimony having been taken, the public hearing on 6-year Traffic 
Improvement Program is now closed ending time 6:03 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Rachelle Denham, City Clerk Shawn O’Neill, Mayor    Councilor 



Voucher Report
Council Meeting:  2022- June - June 14, 2022 First Council Meeting

Reference Date Amount Notes

Reference Number: 37571 International Brotherhood Teamsters Local 252$774.50

Union Dues - 14172 5/11/2022 $47.75

Union Dues - 14173 5/11/2022 $38.75

Union Dues - 14175 5/11/2022 $27.75

Union Dues - 14176 5/11/2022 $35.25

Union Dues - 14177 5/11/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14178 5/11/2022 $29.25

Union Dues - 14179 5/11/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14180 5/11/2022 $49.75

Union Dues - 14181 5/11/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14182 5/11/2022 $29.75

Union Dues - 14184 5/11/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14186 5/25/2022 $47.75

Union Dues - 14187 5/25/2022 $38.75

Union Dues - 14189 5/25/2022 $27.75

Union Dues - 14191 5/25/2022 $35.25

Union Dues - 14192 5/25/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14193 5/25/2022 $29.25

Union Dues - 14195 5/25/2022 $49.75

Union Dues - 14196 5/25/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14197 5/25/2022 $29.75

Union Dues - 14199 5/25/2022 $32.25

Union Dues - 14203 5/25/2022 $32.25

Reference Number: 37572 Nationwide Retirement Solutions $2,625.00

Deferred Comp - 14172 5/11/2022 $100.00

Deferred Comp - 14174 5/11/2022 $250.00

Deferred Comp - 14180 5/11/2022 $75.00

Deferred Comp - 14181 5/11/2022 $150.00

Deferred Comp - 14183 5/11/2022 $250.00

Deferred Comp - 14185 5/11/2022 $50.00

Deferred Comp - 14186 5/25/2022 $100.00

Deferred Comp - 14188 5/25/2022 $250.00

Deferred Comp - 14195 5/25/2022 $75.00

Deferred Comp - 14196 5/25/2022 $150.00

Deferred Comp - 14198 5/25/2022 $250.00

Deferred Comp - 14200 5/25/2022 $50.00

Deferred Comp Match - 141865/25/2022 $100.00

Deferred Comp Match - 141885/25/2022 $250.00

Deferred Comp Match - 141955/25/2022 $75.00

Deferred Comp Match - 141965/25/2022 $150.00

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Deferred Comp Match - 141985/25/2022 $250.00

Deferred Comp Match - 142005/25/2022 $50.00

Reference Number: 37574 Department of Commerce $57,115.54

PWTF-258399 4/29/2022 $57,115.54 Rush Rd PWTF Project Loan Payment

Reference Number: 37575 Payroll Vendor $9,016.52

Net Pay - 14216 6/8/2022 $9,016.52

Reference Number: 37576 ALS Environmental $137.00

36-51-577861-0 4/14/2022 $137.00 Water Samples

Reference Number: 37577 Badger Meter $81.31

80099848 5/30/2022 $81.31 2022*may 81 Automatic Meter Reads

Reference Number: 37578 Buzzard O'Rourke $5,157.50

9045 5/25/2022 $2,265.00 May 2022 City Legal/Pass Thru

9046 5/25/2022 $2,892.50 2022 - May Prosecution

Reference Number: 37579 C.W. Nielsen Mfg Corp $86.24

43993 5/26/2022 $86.24 Napavine Badge T Nichols

Reference Number: 37580 Capital Business Machines $342.73

INV106271 6/10/2022 $268.51 2022-May Copies

INV106272 6/10/2022 $74.22 2022-May PD/Court Copies

Reference Number: 37581 Centralia O.K. Tire $770.10

1100919 6/9/2022 $770.10 4 Eagle Enforcer/balance/dismount

Reference Number: 37582 City of Chehalis $104,016.88

2022*June Payment 5/10/2022 $104,016.88 2022*June  Installment

Reference Number: 37583 City of Napavine $250.16

2022*April May Water/Sewer City Hall6/1/2022 $217.82 2022-  City Water/Sewer April May

2022*April May Water/Sewer Mayme Shaddock6/9/2022 $32.34 2022- April May Mayme Shaddock Park

Reference Number: 37584 Flannery Publications $138.51

28369 3/23/2022 $108.30 BP Fuels Hearing April 4th

28443 3/30/2022 $30.21 Ord 630 Publication 88282

Reference Number: 37585 General Pacific Inc $2,571.03

1439279 6/9/2022 $2,571.03 3 Badger 2" Meters

Reference Number: 37586 Home Depot Credit Services $525.69

21198 5/17/2022 $16.10 Surge Protector

5020796A 5/6/2022 $0.03 Difference from inv 5020796

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

7525411 5/20/2022 $431.72 Imp drive kit/sawzall

9341738 5/18/2022 $77.84 Milwaukee 2" diamond Plus

Reference Number: 37587 Innovations In Eyecare $345.00

202205013902-5451 5/6/2022 $345.00 Eye Appt Elwod

Reference Number: 37588 LCSO-Corrections Bureau $1,416.00

2022*May Jail 6/10/2022 $1,416.00 2022*May - 18.33 # of beds days

Reference Number: 37589 Lemay Mobile Shredding $220.00

1575097 6/1/2022 $220.00 Shredding

Reference Number: 37590 Lewis County Fleet Svs. $690.83

37899 5/26/2022 $690.83 15 Dodge Charger EVAP System

Reference Number: 37591 Lewis County Public Health Department $336.00

4832 LCH 6/1/2022 $336.00 12 Water Testing Bottles

Reference Number: 37592 Lewis County PUD $4,420.42

104755002*may 5/20/2022 $32.57

104755003*2022 May 5/20/2022 $32.57 2022*4/7-5/9  Triangle lts

104755004*2022 May 5/20/2022 $56.92 2022*4/8-5/9 Wa & 2nd Traffic Signal

104755005*2022 May 5/20/2022 $43.12 2022*4/8-5/9 Ball Park Lts

104755006*2022 May 5/20/2022 $53.67 2022*4/7-5/9 Linhart Ave Lights

104755007*2022 May 5/20/2022 $39.58 2022*4/7-5/9 Ped Overpass

104755008*2022 May 5/20/2022 $82.59 2022*4/8-5/9 PW Shop

104755009*2022 May 5/20/2022 $75.28 2022*4/8-5/9 Park Concessions

104755010*2022 May 5/27/2022 $30.82 2022*4/18-5/17 Hamilton Rd

104755012*2022 May 5/20/2022 $45.43 2022*4/8-5/9 Birch St Traffic Signal

104755014*2022 May 5/20/2022 $34.45 2022*4/7-5/9 WAshington St 

104755015*2022 May 5/20/2022 $43.77 2022*4/7-5/9 Camden Way St

104755016*2022 ay 5/20/2022 $33.29 2022*4/7-5/9 Parkside Loop

104755017*2022 May 5/20/2022 $151.99 2022*4/7-5/9 3rd Ave Pump Station

104755018*2022 May 5/20/2022 $754.86 20224/20-5/2080 LED Low 19 LED High

104755019*2022 May 5/20/2022 $69.44 2022*4/7-5/9 Chiere Sewer Station

104755020*2022 May 5/20/2022 $693.31 2022*4/8-5/9 Pump 4 & 5

104755021*2022 May 5/20/2022 $288.02 2022*4/8-5/9 Jefferson Pump

104755022*2022 May 5/20/2022 $307.84 2022*4/7-5/9 Rush Rd Pump

104755023*2022 May 5/20/2022 $85.05 2022*4/8-5/9 Well #3

104755024*2022 May 5/27/2022 $134.34 2022*4/8-5/9 Well #2

104755025*2022 May 5/27/2022 $355.62 2022*4/8-5/9 Washington Pump

104755026*2022 May 5/27/2022 $35.30 2022*4/18-5/17 Koontz Rd Light

1047555011*2022 May 5/20/2022 $36.17 2022*4/8-5/9 Stadium Hts

115588001*2022 May 5/27/2022 $55.11 2022*4/8-5/9 Rathburn

115588002*2022 May 5/27/2022 $41.32 2022*4/7-5/10 4th & Stella

124227002*2022 May 5/27/2022 $469.02 2022*4/18-5/17Well #6 

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

124227003*2022 May 5/27/2022 $268.66 2022*4/8-5/9 Triangle lt

128323001*2022 May 5/27/2022 $34.01 2022*4/7-5/9 Ampitheater

128578001*2022 May 5/27/2022 $36.30 2022*4/18-5/16 Rush Rd Light

Reference Number: 37593 Midco Diving & Marine Services $3,984.29

P2021253 5/20/2022 $3,984.29 Reservoir Divers

Reference Number: 37594 Mountain Mist $18.96

004774561 5/27/2022 $4.31 Water Cooler Rental

004789917 6/8/2022 $14.65 1 Water Jug & Rntal

Reference Number: 37595 Mrs. Klean Janitorial $634.00

INV-1857 6/1/2022 $634.00 2022 - Clean City Hall June

Reference Number: 37596 Napavine Postmaster $296.00

2022*Annual 6/3/2022 $296.00 2022-2023 July  Post Office Box 810 Fee 

Reference Number: 37597 Quill Corporation $87.72

161368778 6/6/2022 $87.72 paper and Pens

Reference Number: 37598 Service Saw Workwears $228.71

298440 6/6/2022 $228.71 Weedeater Repair

Reference Number: 37599 Sphere Protection Group Inc $100.00

21-214 6/7/2022 $100.00 2022-May Security Court

Reference Number: 37600 Sweeny's Ace Hardware $278.17

857507 5/2/2022 $36.64 Flashlight

857508 5/2/2022 $34.47 Water Repair CP:

857641 5/3/2022 $23.83 Elbow/hose clamp

857854 5/6/2022 $36.82 Cleaners Trash Bags

857908 5/6/2022 $66.20 Padlock and 10pk KW!

858203 5/9/2022 $3.01 32 oz Sprayer

858222 5/9/2022 $19.01 Fasteners

858235 5/9/2022 $6.90 Fasteners

858551 5/12/2022 $7.31 Keyblank 10 Pk KW1

858605 5/13/2022 $6.46 Flat Blk Spraypaint

858917 5/16/2022 $7.10 Hasp Stpl

858984 5/16/2022 $5.27 Concrete Mix

859213 5/19/2022 $6.00 Adapter/Clamp

859907 5/23/2022 $8.61 Spray Paint Sage

860577 5/31/2022 $10.54 Concrete Mix

Reference Number: 37601 The Farm Store $837.39

170857 6/10/2022 $259.66 Glystar-2 2.5 Gal

171008 6/8/2022 $129.83 Glystar Plus 2.5 Gal

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

710062 6/3/2022 $447.90  3 Crossbow 2.5 Gal

Reference Number: 37602 Traffic Safety Supply Co. $79.77

INV048984 5/13/2022 $79.77 4 All Way Signs

Reference Number: 37603 Transient Vendor $80.85

0099 5/19/2022 $80.85 Custom Decal

Reference Number: 37604 Transient Vendor $100.00

1310.4 Brown 5/10/2022 $100.00 Utility Deposit Refund 1310.4

Reference Number: 37605 Transient Vendor $100.00

1371.0 Beckwith 5/10/2022 $100.00 Utility Deposit Refund 1371.0

Reference Number: 37606 Transient Vendor $100.00

1744.0 Falkner 5/10/2022 $100.00 Utility Deposit Refund Acc 1744.0

Reference Number: 37607 Transient Vendor $395.00

2023332 6/3/2022 $395.00 Background Investigation Dawes

Reference Number: 37608 Transient Vendor $6,267.50

Acorn Inv 208 Fenway Ct Light5/26/2022 $6,267.50 Brad Clark Rct 25278 10/14/21 Refund

Reference Number: 37609 Transient Vendor $68.98

WASPC Conf Miles 6/1/2022 $68.98 Brockmueller WASPC Conf

Reference Number: 37610 US Bank NA Cincinnati $26.00

2022*May Bank fee 6/8/2022 $26.00 2022 *May-  Bond Fee

Reference Number: 37611 US Cellular $821.93

0508563524 5/12/2022 $257.63 PW/Comm Dev/Clerk Cell Phone

0508601533 5/12/2022 $517.09 police Cell Phone & MDT

0510215887 5/20/2022 $47.21 treasurer cell phone

Reference Number: 37612 Utilities Underground Location Center $25.66

2050193 5/31/2022 $25.66 2022*May 20 Locates

Reference Number: 37613 Vander Stoep, Blinks, Jones & Unzelman$1,100.00

2022*may services 6/7/2022 $1,100.00 2022-May Services

Reference Number: 37614 Vision Municipal Solution $207.52

09-10684 5/9/2022 $59.29 Fix Printing Issues

09-10782 5/31/2022 $29.65 Send Court Credentials

09-10783 5/31/2022 $59.29 Court Email issues

09-10789 5/31/2022 $59.29 Forward Mary email to Michelle

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Reference Number: 37615 WA Dept of Transportation $2,453.13

*FB91458011221 5/31/2022 $2,453.13 2022*May fuel

Reference Number: Direct Deposit Run - 5/25/2022Payroll Vendor $27,754.18 May 2nd Pay Period May 25

ACH Pay - 14186 5/25/2022 $2,536.50

ACH Pay - 14187 5/25/2022 $2,030.90

ACH Pay - 14188 5/25/2022 $1,761.63

ACH Pay - 14189 5/25/2022 $1,531.08

ACH Pay - 14191 5/25/2022 $1,534.93

ACH Pay - 14192 5/25/2022 $1,741.74

ACH Pay - 14193 5/25/2022 $1,851.77

ACH Pay - 14195 5/25/2022 $2,425.98

ACH Pay - 14196 5/25/2022 $1,512.58

ACH Pay - 14197 5/25/2022 $2,005.17

ACH Pay - 14198 5/25/2022 $1,868.76

ACH Pay - 14199 5/25/2022 $1,642.82

ACH Pay - 14200 5/25/2022 $2,225.01

ACH Pay - 14203 5/25/2022 $3,085.31

Reference Number: Direct Deposit Run - 6/8/2022Payroll Vendor $23,668.85 June 1st Pay Period June 8

ACH Pay - 14204 6/8/2022 $2,637.93

ACH Pay - 14205 6/8/2022 $2,018.88

ACH Pay - 14206 6/8/2022 $1,815.07

ACH Pay - 14207 6/8/2022 $1,531.36

ACH Pay - 14208 6/8/2022 $1,536.71

ACH Pay - 14209 6/8/2022 $1,744.24

ACH Pay - 14213 6/8/2022 $2,728.10

ACH Pay - 14215 6/8/2022 $1,642.73

ACH Pay - 14217 6/8/2022 $1,984.99

ACH Pay - 14219 6/8/2022 $2,645.92

ACH Pay - 14220 6/8/2022 $1,478.74

ACH Pay - 14221 6/8/2022 $1,904.18

Reference Number: EFT Payment 6/13/2022 10:17:21 AM - 1Cintas Corp $633.28

5110661750 6/9/2022 $319.61 Medical Supply Refill

5110661754 6/2/2022 $313.67 Medical Supply Refill

Reference Number: EFT Payment 6/13/2022 10:17:51 AM - 1WAVE $541.01

032776101-0009503 5/17/2022 $119.07 2022* MayPolice Dept Internet

104979801-0009503 5/17/2022 $439.64 2022- 5/19-6/18  WAVE Phone/Internet

FIX EFT*2022*0404 6/10/2022 ($8.85) FIX EFT*2022*0404

FIX EFT2022*0405 6/10/2022 ($8.85) FIX EFT2022*0405

Reference Number: EFT Payment 6/13/2022 9:36:40 AM - 1Centurylink $56.32

206-T21-6528 954 2022*June 6/10/2022 $56.32 2022 - May20 - June 20 Well Telemetry 206T21

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Reference Number: EFT*20220509AFLAC Remittance Processing $690.24

Aflac - 14172 5/11/2022 $32.36

Aflac - 14174 5/11/2022 $27.17

Aflac - 14185 5/11/2022 $39.20

Aflac - 14186 5/25/2022 $32.37

Aflac - 14188 5/25/2022 $27.17

Aflac - 14200 5/25/2022 $39.20

Aflac Disability - 14174 5/11/2022 $47.84

Aflac Disability - 14180 5/11/2022 $95.68

Aflac Disability - 14183 5/11/2022 $34.27

Aflac Disability - 14185 5/11/2022 $34.32

Aflac Disability - 14188 5/25/2022 $47.84

Aflac Disability - 14195 5/25/2022 $95.68

Aflac Disability - 14198 5/25/2022 $102.82

Aflac Disability - 14200 5/25/2022 $34.32

Reference Number: eft*20220510Dept of Retirement Systems $5,881.95

Emp Rtmt - 14186 5/25/2022 $184.41

Emp Rtmt - 14187 5/25/2022 $142.51

Emp Rtmt - 14188 5/25/2022 $268.39

Emp Rtmt - 14189 5/25/2022 $195.49

Emp Rtmt - 14191 5/25/2022 $204.88

Emp Rtmt - 14192 5/25/2022 $232.20

Emp Rtmt - 14193 5/25/2022 $227.41

Emp Rtmt - 14195 5/25/2022 $366.05

Emp Rtmt - 14196 5/25/2022 $241.94

Emp Rtmt - 14197 5/25/2022 $139.89

Emp Rtmt - 14198 5/25/2022 $295.61

Emp Rtmt - 14199 5/25/2022 $231.69

Emp Rtmt - 14200 5/25/2022 $307.40

Emp Rtmt - 14203 5/25/2022 $295.61

Taxable Retirement  - 14186 5/25/2022 $296.79

Taxable Retirement  - 14187 5/25/2022 $229.35

Taxable Retirement  - 14188 5/25/2022 $166.53

Taxable Retirement  - 14189 5/25/2022 $121.30

Taxable Retirement  - 14191 5/25/2022 $127.12

Taxable Retirement  - 14192 5/25/2022 $144.08

Taxable Retirement  - 14193 5/25/2022 $141.11

Taxable Retirement  - 14195 5/25/2022 $227.13

Taxable Retirement  - 14196 5/25/2022 $150.12

Taxable Retirement  - 14197 5/25/2022 $225.14

Taxable Retirement  - 14198 5/25/2022 $201.88

Taxable Retirement  - 14199 5/25/2022 $143.76

Taxable Retirement  - 14200 5/25/2022 $190.74

Taxable Retirement  - 14203 5/25/2022 $183.42

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Reference Number: EFT*20220511Dept of Treasury Internal Revenue Service$5,835.55

Federal Income Tax - 14186 5/25/2022 $527.75

Federal Income Tax - 14187 5/25/2022 $407.14

Federal Income Tax - 14188 5/25/2022 $304.58

Federal Income Tax - 14189 5/25/2022 $180.54

Federal Income Tax - 14190 5/25/2022 $0.00

Federal Income Tax - 14191 5/25/2022 $227.68

Federal Income Tax - 14192 5/25/2022 $292.00

Federal Income Tax - 14193 5/25/2022 $130.33

Federal Income Tax - 14195 5/25/2022 $550.32

Federal Income Tax - 14196 5/25/2022 $131.31

Federal Income Tax - 14197 5/25/2022 $397.37

Federal Income Tax - 14198 5/25/2022 $367.42

Federal Income Tax - 14199 5/25/2022 $123.62

Federal Income Tax - 14200 5/25/2022 $369.72

Federal Income Tax - 14203 5/25/2022 $709.23

Medicare - 14186 (1) 5/25/2022 $52.70

Medicare - 14186 (2) 5/25/2022 $52.70

Medicare - 14187 (1) 5/25/2022 $40.44

Medicare - 14187 (2) 5/25/2022 $40.44

Medicare - 14188 (1) 5/25/2022 $37.97

Medicare - 14188 (2) 5/25/2022 $37.97

Medicare - 14189 (1) 5/25/2022 $27.65

Medicare - 14189 (2) 5/25/2022 $27.65

Medicare - 14191 (1) 5/25/2022 $28.98

Medicare - 14191 (2) 5/25/2022 $28.98

Medicare - 14192 (1) 5/25/2022 $32.85

Medicare - 14192 (2) 5/25/2022 $32.85

Medicare - 14193 (1) 5/25/2022 $32.17

Medicare - 14193 (2) 5/25/2022 $32.17

Medicare - 14195 (1) 5/25/2022 $51.78

Medicare - 14195 (2) 5/25/2022 $51.78

Medicare - 14196 (1) 5/25/2022 $34.23

Medicare - 14196 (2) 5/25/2022 $34.23

Medicare - 14197 (1) 5/25/2022 $39.79

Medicare - 14197 (2) 5/25/2022 $39.79

Medicare - 14198 (1) 5/25/2022 $41.82

Medicare - 14198 (2) 5/25/2022 $41.82

Medicare - 14199 (1) 5/25/2022 $32.78

Medicare - 14199 (2) 5/25/2022 $32.78

Medicare - 14200 (1) 5/25/2022 $43.49

Medicare - 14200 (2) 5/25/2022 $43.49

Medicare - 14203 (1) 5/25/2022 $61.62

Medicare - 14203 (2) 5/25/2022 $61.62

Reference Number: EFT*20220512Vimly Benefit Solutions, Inc $14,946.10

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Add Court Katie 5/26/2022 $7.72

Medical Dental - 14176 5/11/2022 $21.89

Medical Dental - 14179 5/11/2022 $139.42

Medical Dental - 14180 5/11/2022 $52.78

Medical Dental - 14181 5/11/2022 $310.91

Medical Dental - 14183 5/11/2022 $21.89

Medical Dental - 14184 5/11/2022 $260.04

Medical Dental - 14185 5/11/2022 $21.89

Medical Dental - 14191 5/25/2022 $21.89

Medical Dental - 14195 5/25/2022 $52.78

Medical Dental - 14196 5/25/2022 $310.91

Medical Dental - 14198 5/25/2022 $21.89

Medical Dental - 14199 5/25/2022 $260.04

Medical Dental - 14200 5/25/2022 $21.89

Medical Dental - 14203 5/25/2022 $139.42

Medical/Dental - 14186 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14187 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14188 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14189 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14190 5/25/2022 $742.50

Medical/Dental - 14191 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14192 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14193 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14195 5/25/2022 $900.00

Medical/Dental - 14196 5/25/2022 $900.00

Medical/Dental - 14197 5/25/2022 $892.28

Medical/Dental - 14198 5/25/2022 $900.00

Medical/Dental - 14199 5/25/2022 $900.00

Medical/Dental - 14200 5/25/2022 $900.00

Medical/Dental - 14203 5/25/2022 $900.00

Reference Number: EFT*20220601Dept of Retirement Systems $5,686.08

Emp Rtmt - 14204 6/8/2022 $197.74

Emp Rtmt - 14205 6/8/2022 $142.51

Emp Rtmt - 14206 6/8/2022 $274.81

Emp Rtmt - 14207 6/8/2022 $195.49

Emp Rtmt - 14208 6/8/2022 $204.88

Emp Rtmt - 14209 6/8/2022 $232.20

Emp Rtmt - 14213 6/8/2022 $193.11

Emp Rtmt - 14215 6/8/2022 $231.69

Emp Rtmt - 14216 6/8/2022 $324.47

Emp Rtmt - 14217 6/8/2022 $243.82

Emp Rtmt - 14219 6/8/2022 $398.85

Emp Rtmt - 14220 6/8/2022 $236.82

Emp Rtmt - 14221 6/8/2022 $295.61

Taxable Retirement  - 14204 6/8/2022 $318.24

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Taxable Retirement  - 14205 6/8/2022 $229.35

Taxable Retirement  - 14206 6/8/2022 $170.51

Taxable Retirement  - 14207 6/8/2022 $121.30

Taxable Retirement  - 14208 6/8/2022 $127.12

Taxable Retirement  - 14209 6/8/2022 $144.08

Taxable Retirement  - 14213 6/8/2022 $310.80

Taxable Retirement  - 14215 6/8/2022 $143.76

Taxable Retirement  - 14216 6/8/2022 $201.33

Taxable Retirement  - 14217 6/8/2022 $151.29

Taxable Retirement  - 14219 6/8/2022 $247.48

Taxable Retirement  - 14220 6/8/2022 $146.94

Taxable Retirement  - 14221 6/8/2022 $201.88

Reference Number: EFT*20220602Dept of Treasury Internal Revenue Service$7,666.65

Federal Income Tax - 14204 6/8/2022 $565.48

Federal Income Tax - 14205 6/8/2022 $402.74

Federal Income Tax - 14206 6/8/2022 $312.10

Federal Income Tax - 14207 6/8/2022 $180.54

Federal Income Tax - 14208 6/8/2022 $227.68

Federal Income Tax - 14209 6/8/2022 $292.00

Federal Income Tax - 14213 6/8/2022 $639.32

Federal Income Tax - 14215 6/8/2022 $123.62

Federal Income Tax - 14216 6/8/2022 $2,353.76

Federal Income Tax - 14217 6/8/2022 $149.54

Federal Income Tax - 14219 6/8/2022 $623.94

Federal Income Tax - 14220 6/8/2022 $125.31

Federal Income Tax - 14221 6/8/2022 $367.42

Medicare - 14204 (1) 6/8/2022 $55.19

Medicare - 14204 (2) 6/8/2022 $55.19

Medicare - 14205 (1) 6/8/2022 $40.15

Medicare - 14205 (2) 6/8/2022 $40.15

Medicare - 14206 (1) 6/8/2022 $38.88

Medicare - 14206 (2) 6/8/2022 $38.88

Medicare - 14207 (1) 6/8/2022 $27.65

Medicare - 14207 (2) 6/8/2022 $27.65

Medicare - 14208 (1) 6/8/2022 $28.98

Medicare - 14208 (2) 6/8/2022 $28.98

Medicare - 14209 (1) 6/8/2022 $32.85

Medicare - 14209 (2) 6/8/2022 $32.85

Medicare - 14213 (1) 6/8/2022 $55.44

Medicare - 14213 (2) 6/8/2022 $55.44

Medicare - 14215 (1) 6/8/2022 $32.78

Medicare - 14215 (2) 6/8/2022 $32.78

Medicare - 14216 (1) 6/8/2022 $173.45

Medicare - 14216 (2) 6/8/2022 $173.45

Medicare - 14217 (1) 6/8/2022 $34.49

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

Medicare - 14217 (2) 6/8/2022 $34.49

Medicare - 14219 (1) 6/8/2022 $56.42

Medicare - 14219 (2) 6/8/2022 $56.42

Medicare - 14220 (1) 6/8/2022 $33.50

Medicare - 14220 (2) 6/8/2022 $33.50

Medicare - 14221 (1) 6/8/2022 $41.82

Medicare - 14221 (2) 6/8/2022 $41.82

Reference Number: EFT20220513Washington Teamsters Welfare Trust $222.30

Fix Court Katie Employer Side 5/26/2022 ($7.72)

Vision Insurance - 14172 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14173 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14174 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14175 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14176 5/11/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14177 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14178 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14180 5/11/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14181 5/11/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14182 5/11/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14183 5/11/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14184 5/11/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14185 5/11/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14186 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14186 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14187 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14187 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14188 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14188 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14189 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14189 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14191 (1) 5/25/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14191 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14192 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14192 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14193 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14193 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14195 5/25/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14196 5/25/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14197 (1) 5/25/2022 $4.69

Vision Insurance - 14197 (2) 5/25/2022 $7.72

Vision Insurance - 14198 5/25/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14199 5/25/2022 $8.55

Vision Insurance - 14200 5/25/2022 $8.55

June 14, 2022 Grand Total $302,911.05 

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]



Reference Date Amount Notes

The following voucher/warrants/electronic payments are approved for payment:

(Funds) Total Voucher Numbers:37574, 37576-37615 196,912.52     

Payroll Voucher numbers: 37571-37572, 37575 12,416.02       

Electronic payments  dates: EFT*20220603-05 1,230.61         

Electaon Payroll Payments: EFT*20220509-12, EFT*20220601-02 40,928.87       

ACH Deposits Dates: May 25 & Jun 9, Direct Dep 51,423.03       

Vouchers Grand Total: 302,911.05     

Voided Checks: None

WE, THE FOLLOWING SIGNEES, APPROVE THE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT:

MAYOR: __________________________________________________________

CLERK-TREASURER: _________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #1: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #2: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #3: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #4: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #5: ___________________________________________________

Police Department - John Brockmueller_____________________________

Public Works/Community Development - Bryan Morris ________________

Court- Katie Clark _______________________________________________

City Clerk - Rachelle Denham:_____________________________________

DATED THIS 14thth DAY OF June, 2022

June 14, 2022 Council Meeting  City of Napavine -Voucher Report 24]

















































































































































































J i m  H a s l e t t  M e m o r i a l  S e r v i c e  
“ H i s  H e r i t a g e  a n d  L e g a c y ”  

S a t u r d a y ,  J u n e  2 5 ,  2 0 2 2  

1 : 0 0  p m  –  3 : 3 0  p m  

1:00 pm  Napavine Assembly of God 
414 2nd Avenue N.E., Napavine, WA. 

 (NOTE: Facility opens at 12:30 to view paintings for    

 ‘Haslett Legacy Silent Auction.’ 

Silent auction funds will support the on-going expenses of the 

Mayme Shaddock Park upkeep.            

Additional paintings will be on display in the park.) 

  T.J. Haslett – Moderator 
  - Welcome by Pastor Jim Smith – Napavine Assembly of God 

- Song sung by Kayla Carter. (*) 

  - Tim Johnson remembrance. 

  - Open opportunity for audience testimonial/remembrance participation. 

  - Pastor Jim Smith reading Pastor Don Ross (Vader Assembly of God)  

   remembrance. 

  - Mike Kitchen remembrance. 

  - Dean Warner remembrance. 

  - Open opportunity for audience testimonial/remembrance participation. 

  - Laverne Haslett remembrance 

- T.J. Haslett remembrance. 

  - Song sung by Kayla Carter. (*) 

1:45  Lunch served at Napavine Assembly of God 

2:30  Mayme Shaddock Park 
  555 2nd Avenue N.E., Napavine, WA. 

   (NOTE: Tents will be set up in case of inclement weather.) 

  Ed Howard – Moderator 
  - Invocation by Bryan Morris, Napavine City Director of Public Works. 

- Proclamation in Remembrance and Honor of Jim Haslett by   

  Shawn O’Neill, Mayor of Napavine. 

  - Duane Elwood remembrance of Jim Haslett reading. 

- Planting and Dedication of dogwood tree in the park. 

  - Edna Fund remembrance of Jim Haslett. (*) 

  - Open opportunity for audience testimonial/remembrance participation. 

- Announcement of Intention to Build a Park Kitchen named for   

  Jim Haslett. 

3:30  Final Benediction 
 

(*) Not confirmed as of Friday, June 10, 2022, at 12:00 noon. 

PLEASE NOTE: All times are fluid to allow for additional people to share testimonials. 


	2022.06.14 Clerk Staff Report 
	Police-May Monthly Call Stats
	Item #1 2022-06-14 Reg Agenda
	Tuesday – June 14, 2022 – 6:00 PM

	Item #2 2022-05-24 Regular Meeting Minutes
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAPAVINE, WASHINGTON, IMPOSING AN IMMEDIATE MORATORIUM ON THE FILING, ACCEPTANCE, PROCESSING AND/OR APPROVAL OF APPLICATIONS FOR THE SITING, ESTABLISHMENT, AND OPERATION OF VEHICLE FUELING STATIONS WITHIN CITY LIMITS; DECLA...

	Item #3 2022-05-24 Minutes-Public Hearing 6-Year Transportation Improvement
	Item #4 2022-06-14 Voucher Report
	Item #5.0 Scot Industriest Variance and site plan
	Item #5.1 Scot SEPA
	Item #5.2 Scot Industrie Public Hearing Docs
	Item #5.3 Scots Public Hearing Comments
	Item #5.4 Scots Recommendation Documents
	Item #6 Municipal Court Council Report 6_14_22
	Jim Haslett Memorial Service Schedule



